

User Handbook

Page 1 of 33



# SISCAL Satellite-based Information System on Coastal Areas and Lakes

#### Compiled by:

Dr. Frank Fell Informus GmbH Gustav-Meyer-Allee 25 13355 Berlin http://www.informus.de





**User Handbook** 



Document ID	050708_nsiscal_handbook.doc				
Project acronym	SISCAL				
Project title	Satellite-based Information System on Coastal Areas and Lakes				
Date	2005-07-08				
Pages	33				
Short description	User Manual for the SISCAL User Interface				
Revision	1.0				
Author(s) and affiliation(s)	F. Fell, Informus GmbH, Berlin				
Modification history	2005-06-13: 1. draft version				
	2005-07-08: 1. published version				
Distribution	Public document, available on the SISCAL website				



Version 1.0

# **Table of contents**

1	Intro	duction	6
2	The	SISCAL public area	7
	2.1	Service overview	8
	2.2	Product samples	9
	2.3	Advanced usage	. 10
	2.4	Data availability	. 11
	2.5	Terms of use	. 12
	2.6	Credits	. 13
3	The	SISCAL restricted area	. 14
	3.1	User registration	. 15
	3.2	Creating profiles	. 19
	3.2.1	Step 1 of 7: Geographical area	. 20
	3.2.2	Step 2 of 7: Satellite instrument	. 20
	3.2.3	Step 3 of 7: Product specification	. 21
	3.2.4	Step 4 of 7: Specification of geographical projection	. 22
	3.2.5	Step 5 of 7: output specifications	. 22
	3.2.6	Step 6 of 7: ancillary processing schemes	. 23
	3.2.7	Step 7 of 7: profile summary and submission	. 24
	3.2.8	Removing profiles	. 25
	3.3	Product ordering	. 27
	3.3.1	Step 1 of 3: request specifications	. 27
	3.3.2	Step 2 of 3: Overpass selection	. 28
	3.3.3	Step 3 of 3: Request submission	. 29
	3.4	Product retrieval	. 31
	3.4.1	Step 1 of 3: Request selection	. 31
	3.4.2	Step 2 of 3: Job selection	. 31
	3.4.3	Step 3 of 3 – product selection	. 32



# List of figures

Figure 1: SISCAL Welcome page, http://www.siscal.net:8080/siscal/Welcome.do7
Figure 2: http://www.siscal.net:8080/siscal/Description.do, SISCAL service overview
Figure 3: Samples of SISCAL standard products http://www.siscal.net:8080/siscal/Samples.do,9
Figure 4: Description of advanced products based on SISCAL standard products and the
End-user GIS, http://www.siscal.net:8080/siscal/AdvancedSamples.do
Figure 5: Available acquisition phases of the SISCAL service, http://www.siscal.net:8080/siscal/Acquisitions.do11
Figure 6: Terms of access for using the SISCAL service,
http://www.siscal.net:8080/siscal/TermsOfAccess.do
Figure 7: People and institutions who have contributed to SISCAL from its very early stages, http://www.siscal.net:8080/siscal/Credits.do
Figure 8: SISCAL welcome page. The arrow indicates the link to access the registration forms
Figure 9: First step of SISCAL registration procedure. Information with an asterisk (*) is mandatory. We kindly ask you to also provide the other information for our user database
Figure 10: Confirmation of user registration provided on the SISCAL website
Figure 11: E-mail containing the SISCAL account activation key. Clicking on the link will finally activate the account
Figure 12: Confirmation of successful final registration. The account is now ready and the new user can directly log into the system by entering name and password in the log-in panel on the upper left
Figure 13: List of user-specific profiles accessed through the <i>"Manage Profiles"</i> menu entry. After registration, a limited number of profiles are already available
Figure 14: First step of profile creation - specification of the geographic area
Figure 15: Second step of profile creation - specification of the satellite instrument
Figure 16: Third step of profile creation - specification of the products
Figure 17: Fourth step of profile creation - specification of the geographical projection 22
Figure 18: Fifth step of profile creation – output specifications
Figure 19: Sixth step of profile creation – ancillary processing schemes
Figure 20: Seventh step of profile creation: final submission for entering into the database. 25



Figure 21: User interface for removing profiles. The interface is accessed through the	
"Manage Profiles" menu entry or directly through	
http://www.siscal.net:8080/siscal/DeleteProfile.do.	. 26
Figure 22: First step of product ordering – specifying profile and temporal range	. 27
Figure 23: Second step of product ordering – overpass selection	28
Figure 24: Third step of product ordering – request submission	29
Figure 25: Product ordering - confirmation of request submission	.30
Figure 26: First step of product retrieval – request selection	31
Figure 27: Second step of product retrieval – job selection	32
Figure 28: Third step of product retrieval – product selection	33



# 1 Introduction

This User Handbook describes how to use the SISCAL service for ordering and downloading SISCAL data products. Ordering data products in SISCAL is done through the SISCAL user interface accessible through <u>http://www.siscal.net</u> by the following four steps:

- 1. Registering as a SISCAL user;
- 2. Setting up user-specific profile(s);
- 3. Ordering data products for the pre-defined profiles;
- 4. Downloading the finalized data products.

The following sections describe these four steps in more detail and provide additional information on the SISCAL service and data products.

The SISCAL website is divided into a public area providing general information on the SISCAL service and a restricted area to which only registered users are granted access. Through registration, users get full access to the SISCAL service. Here, we distinguish between two modes of user interaction:

- The demonstration mode gives access to a subset of the available instruments (AVHRR and MODIS) and algorithms (RGB images and sea surface temperature). In addition, the use of the SISCAL service is limited to a specific number of jobs (actually 100, figure subject to change according to server load). The demonstration mode is free-of-charge.
- The operational mode gives access all available instruments and algorithms for an unlimited number of jobs. Customers can provide their own algorithms which will then be implemented into the system (and will by default be invisible to other users). The operational use of SISCAL is not free and requires a contractual agreement between the customer and the SISCAL operators as well as eventually between the customers and the EO data provider (the customers needs e.g. to be an authorized SeaWiFS user to get access to SeaWiFS data).



# 2 The SISCAL public area

The SISCAL public area gives a short and concise overview about the SISCAL system. It introduces into the concept of SISCAL, lists its functionality and presents sample products from the standard processing chains. The following subsections show screenshots of the SISCAL public pages. Please go to the corresponding URLs to see the actual versions of these pages.

The lay-out of all SISCAL pages is identical:

- On the top left, registered users can log-on into the restricted area. Alternatively, new users can access the registration procedure
- Below, the menu "Resources" gives access to publicly available information. These pages are shown and described in more detail below.
- > The individual contents of a page are shown in the large frame on the right.

When calling the SISCAL service under <u>http://www.siscal.net</u>, the first page offered is the "*Welcome*" page. This page shortly introduces the SISCAL service and lists recent messages of interest to the SISCAL users.



Figure 1: SISCAL Welcome page, <u>http://www.siscal.net:8080/siscal/Welcome.do</u>.



## 2.1 Service overview

The service overview page lists the main functionality of SISCAL. In case more specific information is needed, please contact the operators of SISCAL under <u>siscal@informus.de</u>.



Figure 2: http://www.siscal.net:8080/siscal/Description.do, SISCAL service overview.



# 2.2 Product samples

The "Product Samples" page is a showcase of SISCAL data products representative of different sensors, algorithms, areas of interest, etc. Clicking on the thumbnail images to the left opens the corresponding standard SISCAL image product.



Figure 3: Samples of SISCAL standard products http://www.siscal.net:8080/siscal/Samples.do,



# 2.3 Advanced usage

A specific GIS solution has been developed for SISCAL products. This so-called SISCAL end-user GIS is based on ArcGIS 8.x and the Spatial Analyst extension (ESRI). The end-user GIS offers the standard ArcGIS 8.x functionality plus a SISCAL-specific toolbox. Please contact us under <u>siscal@informus.de</u> in case you need further information on the functionality and availability of the SISCAL end-user GIS.



Figure 4: Description of advanced products based on SISCAL standard products and the Enduser GIS, <u>http://www.siscal.net:8080/siscal/AdvancedSamples.do</u>.



Page 11 of 33

## 2.4 Data availability

One of the most important issues of SISCAL is data availability. In general, data availability is good for AVHRR (Europe) and MODIS (global). The public area of SISCAL lists the combinations of instruments, areas and time spans (termed here "*Acquisition phase*") for which data can be made available, either:

- > Online, i.e. direct access to the data and consequently rapid product generation, or
- Offline, i.e. through ordering of the raw data from the respective data provider, which may take between days and weeks, depending on the instrument.

The available data sets (satellite overpass times) are precisely specified when ordering data products. The comment line indicates which acquisition phases are available for the demonstration mode (DEMO) and for the operational mode (OP).

SISCAL - Microsoft Internet Ex	plorer provid	ed by Tisca	An .			-	. 🗆 🕱
Datei Bearbeiten Ansicht Eavoriten	Egtras 2						27
🌀 Zurack + 🐑 · 🔳 📓 🐔	Disuction y	Faioriten	🕙 Meden 🕢 😥 - چ 🖂 🔜				
Adresse 🗿 http://www.siscal.net:9090/t	siscal/Acquisitions	.do			🗠 💽 We	chsein zu	Unks 🍍
SISCAL Satellite-ba	ased Info	ormatio	n System on Coastal Are	as and l	akes		
Login			,		Data Ava	ilability	
Lisemane							- 11
Dastaword	The table bek	w shows be	sic information on available satellite raw d	lata.			
Cabanit .	Acquisition Pl	hase: MEDO	(ADS				
No account? Click here to create			Period	Area			
one.	Provider	FU-Berlin			55.0 ° N		
Resources	Satellite	NOAA16	> Raw data is available critine since 1989-01-01.	-10.0 * W		42.0 ° E	
> Welcome	Instrument	AV/HRR.			27.0 º N		
Service Overview	Comment		DEMO / OP. Full Mediterranean Basin; So	outh, Central	and East E	urope	
* Product Samples	Acronicition R	NAME AND A	ane .				
* Advanced Samples	Acquisition M	BOR: MED/A	Pused	A			
» Terms of Lise	Description	Di Buda	Penod	Acea	FF O O H		
* Impressum	Catalite	PO-Benn	> Raw data is available online since	-10.0 ° W	55.0 ° N	42.0.2.5	
> Credits	Instrument	MARR.	2004-11-08.	-10.0 - 14	27.0 9 N	46.0 - 6	
	Comment	Partitists	DEMO / OP. Full Mediterranean Basin: Sc	suth. Central	and East F	urope	
	0.00000000				0.10 2004 2	al oper	
	Acquisition Pl	hase: NOR/TR	HERN_EUR.OPE				
			Period	Area			
	Provider Satellite	FU-Berlin NOAA17	Raw data is available online in a rolling archive with a storage delay of 6 hour (s) and a storage period of 4320 hour	-4.0 ° W	72.0 ° N	49.0 ° E	*
× Dokussteren * 🎲 🐯 🗐 🗐 🐄	Aborneron	Dokusson	en sind auf http://www.socal.net.6080( ncht verfagbar				6
8				😰 Inter	net		

Figure 5: Available acquisition phases of the SISCAL service, <a href="http://www.siscal.net:8080/siscal/Acquisitions.do">http://www.siscal.net:8080/siscal/Acquisitions.do</a>.



Page 12 of 33

# 2.5 Terms of use

EISICAL - MICLOSOFT INTERNET ES	plorer provided by Incen	^
Datei Bearbeiten Ansicht Eavoriten	Egrav 2	4
🌀 Zurick 🔹 💭 🕐 📓 🐔	🔎 Suchen 🙀 Favoriten 🜒 🖓 🖓 🔜 🥃	
Adregse 🍓 http://www.siscal.net.9090/t	iscal/TermsOfAccess.do 💌 🛃 Wednsein zu 💷	20
_		^
SISCAL Satellite-ba	ased Information System on Coastal Areas and Lakes	
Login	Terms of Use	
Usemame		
Password	Terms of access to the SISCAL demonstrator	1
Submit	The SISCAL service is operated in two modes:	
No account? Click here to create one.	<ol> <li>a demonstration mode (further on referred to as SISCAL demonstrator), giving access to the full SISCAL demonstrator for a limited ramber of orders.</li> </ol>	
Resources	2. an operational mode based on a contractual agreement between the SISCAL operators and the	
> Welcome	customer, giving unlimited access to the SISCAL service.	
* Service Overview * Product Samples	In order to get access to the SISCAL demonstrator, users shall to register through the SISCAL on-	
» Advanced Samples	line registration form and accept the following terms of access.	
* Data Availability	1. The total number of jobs that can be processed by a user under the demonstration mode is	-
» Terms of Use	limited to a fixed number (typically 100). Having reached that limit, the user will not be able to	
» Impressum » Credits	<ol> <li>Access to the SISCAL demonstrator.</li> <li>Access to the SISCAL demonstrator may be limited or refused at any time without prior notice.</li> <li>Upon prior notice, a per-product service hange may be raised to cover the actual costs of the SISCAL demonstrator products and services are offered on an "as-is" basis. The quality and availability of SISCAL demonstrator products and services are offered on an "as-is" basis. The quality and availability of SISCAL demonstrator products are automatically removed after a limited time period (typically 21 days) from the SISCAL demonstrator products are automatically removed after a limited time period (typically 21 days) from the SISCAL demonstrator products in time.</li> <li>The user is using the SISCAL demonstrator products and services entirely on his/her own responsibility.</li> <li>Images and data products generated by SISCAL are copyrighted property. The registered user may use these products in his or her publications free-of-change under the condition that a credit to SISCAL is given. The ordit shall state: "This product has been provided by the SISCAL service, http://www.siscal.net/".</li> <li>Under no draumstances, SISCAL demonstrator products shall be used, reproduced, or disdosed for commercial or operational purposes.</li> <li>Users who wish to use the SISCAL technology or SISCAL products on an operational or</li> </ol>	
	commercial basis shall contact the SISCAL operators to establish a contractual agreement specifying the conditions of delivery as well as access to the satellite data providers (if required).	*
X Dekussioner 🔂 🕲 🗐 🗊 🗊	Abanneren 📧 💋 tiskussonen sind auf http://www.siscalinet.6000/incht.verlagbar	8
ē)	😰 Internet	1

Figure 6: Terms of access for using the SISCAL service,

http://www.siscal.net:8080/siscal/TermsOfAccess.do.



Page 13 of 33

# 2.6 Credits



Figure 7: People and institutions who have contributed to SISCAL from its very early stages, <u>http://www.siscal.net:8080/siscal/Credits.do</u>.



# 3 The SISCAL restricted area

The SISCAL restricted area is available to registered users. It allows ordering and retrieving SISCAL data products.

The following steps are required to order SISCAL data products:

- 1. registration to the SISCAL service (see section 3.1):
  - a. By default, a new user is given access to the SISCAL demonstration mode with limited access to instruments and algorithms;
  - b. Should a registered user require access to instruments (e.g. SeaWiFS, MERIS) or algorithms (e.g. Chl-a, Secchi depth, ...) that are not part of the demonstration mode, his/her account will be individually modified according to his needs. Please contact us under <u>siscal@informus.de</u> in this case;
- 2. defining "Profiles" (see section 3.2): A profile defines a suite of products to be derived from one instrument, for one area of interest, using specific product generation algorithms and user-specific geographical projection and data formatting;
- 3. ordering products (see section 3.3): The order process encompasses just three steps, since most required information has already been specified during profile definition;
- 4. retrieving products: On completion of a request, the user is notified by e-mail on the availability of data products (see section 3.4). By clicking on the link specified in the e-mail, the user is directly forwarded to the data products download area.



#### 3.1 User registration

A new user has to register first in order to get access to the restricted area of the SISCAL service. Upon registration, a user is granted a package of typically 100 (figure subject to change according to server load) SISCAL jobs to be treated free-of-charge, where a job is defined as one treated satellite scene.

The registration procedure is accessed by clicking on the "*No account? Click here to create one*" link on the SISCAL public web pages (see arrow on Figure 8).



#### Figure 8: SISCAL welcome page. The arrow indicates the link to access the registration forms.

Registration is done in three steps:

- 1. enter your personal details (see Figure 9). The information with an asterisk is mandatory. In addition, you have to read and accept the SISCAL terms of use;
- a registration key is sent to the e-mail address you have provided (see Figure 10). Clicking on the link given in the e-mail finishes the registration process. This way, we ensure that the indicated e-mail address is correct;

Version 1.0

Page 16 of 33

3. Successful registration is indicated both on the web site (see Figure 12) and by sending an e-mail to the specified e-mail address.

Note: By default, users are registered for using SISCAL in the demonstration mode. This gives access to a limited number of satellite instruments and algorithms. Access to the full range of SISCAL products needs to be based on a contractual agreement.

tei Bearbeiten Ansicht Eavoriter	Egitas 2				1
Zuriid: • 🔘 · 💽 📓 😭	D Suchen 👷 Favori	ten 🕐 Medien 🙆 🍰 •	la 🖂 🔜		
esee 者 http://www.siscal.net.8080)	siscal/CreateAccount.do			Mediseln zu	rici
ogin				Registration Step 1/3	
Isemame					-
assword	Account Information				
Submit	Desired Username*		JamesBond		
account? Click have to greate one.	Desired Password*		Moneypenny		
esources	You must enter a miss	ou password. This provides	only sold security, but	and prevent others from	
Welcome	misusing your subscrip	tion. Please do NOT (I) use a	a password identical o	ar similar to passwords you	
Service Overview	are using for sensible p	purposes, as it will not be tra	mamitted over a secu	red connection.	
Product Samples					
Terms of Use	Contact Information				
Credits	Gender	Male M			
	Salutation	Sir			
	Pirstname*	James			
	Lastname*	Bond			
	Email*	JamesBond@doublecer	o.org		
	Organisation	Secret			
	Phone	007-012345-695			
	Fax	007-012345-777			
	Address Information				
	Street				
	City				
	Country				
	Postal Code				
	Planes shell have been	of the trend of our			
	Prease cack nere to re	ad the terms of use.			
	✓Yes, I accept the t	erms of use.			
				Submit	
Delusseren * 📸 🖻 🗐 🗐 🐄	Abermeren	usstenen sind auf http://www.socal.net	entoto/ whit veriagbar		

Figure 9: First step of SISCAL registration procedure. Information with an asterisk (\*) is mandatory. We kindly ask you to also provide the other information for our user database.

Access to the SISCAL service is password protected to ensure the privacy of your SISCAL account and to prevent others from ordering products in your name. However, we actually have implemented only a limited level of security. We therefore recommend using SISCAL-specific passwords that do not resemble other passwords you're using.





Figure 10: Confirmation of user registration provided on the SISCAL website.

Dear Sir James Bond,
thank you for your interest in SISCAL. Your registration data have been stored.
Please click on the following link to register finally.
http://www.siscal.net:8080/siscal/SubscribeSubmit.do?key=6A3CABEF1C7BE7B8
If you're not satisfied with this and want us to delete your details or simply have any comments or queries about SISCAL, please do not hesitate to contact us.
NOTE: This email was generated automatically.

Figure 11: E-mail containing the SISCAL account activation key. Clicking on the link will finally activate the account.





Figure 12: Confirmation of successful final registration. The account is now ready and the new user can directly log into the system by entering name and password in the log-in panel on the upper left.

# 3.2 Creating profiles

SISCAL data products are ordered for user-specific profiles. The rationale for this approach is that most users have specific requirements that will probably not change over time. Predefined user-specific profiles allow ordering data products with very little effort. In case of changing or new requirements on data products, the user simply adds another profile to his portfolio. In the actual state of SISCAL, profiles can only be established or deleted, but not modified. This is not a significant drawback, since creating a profile takes less than about two minutes.

A number of pre-defined profiles are automatically established during the user registration process.

By clicking on the "Manage Profiles" menu entry, the user arrives at the main window for user profile management. This window shows a list of all actually available profiles of the user. A limited number of default profiles are made available directly from the SISCAL system.

	ocal net auaujn acalmanage	+10185.00						recrisein au
SISCA	L							
		· ··	- ·		~			
Sat	ellite-based Ir	formation	on Syst	em on	Coas	tal Are	as and Lakes	
Siscal Services							Manage You	r Profiles
<ul> <li>Submit Order</li> </ul>								
» Manage Profiles	App Action							
> Manage Account: > Download	» Click here to create	a profile			» Click her	e to delete	e a profile	
* Logout	Listing of Profiles							
	Name	Instrument	Projection	Region			Products (Algorithm)	Formats
					35.0 * N		<ul> <li>SST (GG2)</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>BIL</li> </ul>
	Eastern Med AVHRR	AVHRR	UTM	30.0 ° E		36.0 º E	<ul> <li>TAI (BG1)</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>PNG</li> </ul>
					30.0 ° N			
	Eastern Mad MODIC	MODAL	11774		36.0 ° N	75.05.8	<ul> <li>SST (884)</li> <li>Tel (861)</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>BIL</li> <li>DMC</li> </ul>
	Eastern med mobila	PHOLD18	0114	3070 ° E	30.0 ° N	3670 - E	<ul> <li>IAI (BOI)</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Phks</li> </ul>

# Figure 13: List of user-specific profiles accessed through the *"Manage Profiles"* menu entry. After registration, a limited number of profiles are already available.

The dialogue for creating profiles is accessed by clicking on the "*Click here to create a profile*" and consists of seven steps as explained in the following subsections.

## 3.2.1 Step 1 of 7: Geographical area

In the first step of the creation of a profile, the extension of the area of interest has to be entered in geographic coordinates (latitude / longitude) in units of decimal degrees. Here, values east of the Greenwich meridian and north of the equator are to be specified as positive numbers. In addition, the profile should be given a unique, distinguishable name.

SISCAL - Microsoft	internet Explorer provided by Tiscali	- 1 - 🛛
Datei Dearbeiten Anst	drt Eworthen Egitasi Z	N
3 Zurück • 🔘 ·	🖹 👔 🟠 🔎 Suchen 👷 Favoriten 🜒 Meden 🤣 😥 🕞 🥃	
Adresse 👔 http://www.sk	scal.net 8090/siscal/CreateProfileStep1.do	💌 💽 Wechsein au 🛛 Links 🌋
Siscal Services		New Profile 1/7
» Manage Profiles	Choose Profile Name	
* Manage Account * Download	Name AVHRR_SW_BALTIQ	
> Logout	Choose Region of Interest	
	59 Northern Edge	
	10 Western Edge 15	Eastern Edge
	54 Southern Edge	
	Northern latitudes and Eastern longitudes are positive. Southern latitudes and Western longitudes are negative.	
		Submit
		×
X Diskussionen - 🎲 🎲	🗐 🏐 🐒 🕼 Abannieren 📧 💋 Diduccionen sind auf http://www.siscal.net.5000/ nicht werfügber	6
Fertig		Internet

Figure 14: First step of profile creation - specification of the geographic area.

## 3.2.2 Step 2 of 7: Satellite instrument

In the second step of creating a profile, a satellite instrument has to be selected. Here, it is important to know the availability of satellite instrument data within the SISCAL service as well as the products that can be derived from the various instruments.

#### 3.2.2.1 Data availability

Regarding data availability, it is distinguish between "on-line" and "off-line" availability.

- On-line data availability means that data is directly available from the SISCAL local archive or from external archives directly accessible through ftp.
- Off-line availability means that data have to be ordered from the respective satellite data provider. They are then either sent via storage media (such as DVD) or made available for a limited time span for retrieval via ftp. In order to be able to process such data, they have to be copied into the local SISCAL archive.

Only on-line data can be ordered directly through the SISCAL. Off-line data have to be ordered through the SISCAL staff who will make the data available on the SISCAL archive and initiate processing once this is done. Which data are actually available through SISCAL can be inquired through the "data availability" menu entry in the SISCAL public area (see



section 2.4). In the demonstration mode, access to satellite data is actually limited to AVHRR and MODIS data.

SISCAL - Microsoft	Inter	net Explor	er provide	d by Tise	ali		. 🗆 🛛
Datei Dearbeiten Anstr	ht Di	woriten Egt	ras Z				1
Gzurick • 🔘 ·	2	10 8	Suchen 🤺	Favoriten	Medien	🛛 🖉 😓 🖃 🥃	
Adresse 🗃 http://www.sk	scal.net	t 9090/t kcal)	CreateProfileS	itep1Submi	t.do	💌 💽 Wechsein au	Links *
Siscal Services						New Profile 2/7	^
» Manage Profiles	Choo	ose an Inst	trument				
* Manage Account * Download		Instrume	nt Satellites	Spatial Res.	Temporal Res.	Description	
> Logout			NOAA16				
	۲	AVHRR	NOAA17	1000.0	daily	Advanced Very High Resolution Radiometer, NOAA	
	0	MODIS	AQUA TERRA	1000.0	dally	Moderate Resolution Imaging Spectrometer, NASA	_
						Submit	
							~
× Didussionen - 📆 🕑	99	13 13 Ma	mieren 🖭	Diskussia	onen sind auf hit	tp://www.sistal.ret.0080/ nicht verhägber	
Fertig						🔮 Internet	

Figure 15: Second step of profile creation - specification of the satellite instrument.

#### 3.2.3 Step 3 of 7: Product specification

In the third step of profile creation, the products have to be specified. All available products for the chosen instrument and the actual operation mode (demonstration mode by default) are listed. Selection is done by checking the box on the left.

SISCAL - Microsoft	Internet Explorer provided by Tiscali		
Datei Dearbeiten Anste	Prt Eavoritien Egtras Z		27
G Zurück • 🔘 ·	🖹 🗟 🐔 🔎 Suchen 👷 Favoriten 🌒	Meden 🕢 😥 😓 🖂 🧫	
Adregse 🔊 http://www.si	scal.net:8090/siscal/CreateProfileStep2Submit.do	🛩 🛃 Wed	hsein au Links 🏁
			^
_			
Sat	ellite-based Information	System on Coastal Areas and Lakes	
Jac	ente-based mormation	System on Coastal Areas and Lakes	
Siscal Services		New Pro	file 3/7
» Submit Order			
» Manage Profiles	Choose Products		1
» Manage Account	Product	Algorithm	Unit
> Download	SST, Sea surface temperature	GGZ, Sea surface temperature, COASTWATCH, smoothed	*C
* Logout	<ul> <li>TAI, Top-of-atmosphere image</li> </ul>	BG1, Top of atmosphere image, non-linear stretching	none
		Sub	nt
X Reductions at 171 Page	ED ED WE WE Lateratives   [27] Physics are	and and being the set developed with the set of the set of the set	
Contin		sing an anti-Maximi area anal unit servicing a	BO
End		Sutemet	

Figure 16: Third step of profile creation - specification of the products.

## 3.2.4 Step 4 of 7: Specification of geographical projection

In the fourth step of profile creation, the geographical projection needs to be specified. Actually, there are four geographical projections implemented:

- Geographic coordinates (latitude / longitude)
- Universal Transverse Mercator (UTM)
- Gauss-Krueger (German national grid)
- ➢ New Israel Grid

SISCAL

Further geographic projections can be made available on request.

SISCAL - Microsof	t inter	net Explor	er provided by Tiscali		- 18	- ×
Datei Bearbeiten Ansi	int B	worthin Eg	ran Z			R.
🔾 Zurick 🔹 🔘 🗉		1 6 8	Suchen 👷 Favoriten 🜒 🎯 🎭 🚍 🧫			
Adregse 🔊 http://www.s	iscal ne	t:9090/siscal	CreateProfileStep3Submit.do		Wechseln au Lin	ito *
						n
Sat	ellit	e-base	ed Information System on Coastal A	reas and Lake	s	
Siscal Services				New	Profile 4/7	'n
» Submit Order						
» Manage Profiles	Cho	ose a Proje	ction			
» Manage Account		Name	Description	Ellipsoid	Unit	1
» Download	0	ISR.	New Israel Grid	GR:\$1980	m	
* Logout	0	GKC	Gauss-Krueger Coordinates	BESSEL	m	
	۲	UTM	Universal Transverse Mercator	WGS-84	m	
	0	GEO	Geographic Coordinates	WGS-84		
					Submit	
					South	~
X Diskussionen * 🔂 🖏	99	회 형 Av	mieren 🔳 💋 Dolussionen sind auf Mtp://www.socal.net.6080/ nicht verlügbar			
Fortig				😨 Internet		

Figure 17: Fourth step of profile creation - specification of the geographical projection.

#### 3.2.5 Step 5 of 7: output specifications

In the fifth step of profile creation, the output specifications need to be specified:

- Default values are proposed for the output resolution in x- and y-direction. These values may be altered according to the requirements of the user.
- The zone for UTM and Gauss-Krueger geographical projection is calculated automatically from the center of the area of interest. This value can manually be modified.
- > Two delivery formats for the data products are actually offered:
  - Images in PNG format. PNG is a standard image format which can easily be imported into other applications such as MS Word, etc.



 Product data in the band interleaved by line (BIL) binary format. This is the exchange data format with the SISCAL end-user GIS. Data in BIL format may also be directly integrated into a number of image processing and GIS systems such as ERDAS IMAGINE, ESRI ArcGIS, etc.

Further image or data formats can be made available on request.

SISCAL - Microsoft	Inter	net Explo	rer provided by Tiscali							
Datei Bearbeiten Ansa	PA DA	woritien Eg	trati Z		1					
🔇 Zurück 🔹 🜍 🔹	× 2	a 💿 🔪	Suchen 🎇 Favoriten 🚷 Med	in 🕙 📴 🍓 🖂 🔜						
Adresse 🔊 http://www.si	scal.net	t:9090/siscal	/CreateProfileStep4Submit.do	×	🛃 Wechselh zu 🛛 Links 🏾					
Siscal Services				N	ew Profile 5/7					
* Submit Order	_									
» Manage Profiles	Choo	ose Outpu	t Resolution							
> Manage Account	X Re	solution	500.0	in m						
* Logout	YR6	solution	2000.0	in m						
	Zone	ė	33	Only required for UTM and GHC						
	Choo	ose Deliver	ry Formats		1					
		Name	Description	Mime Type						
	4	4	4	4	4	4	BIL	Band Interleave by Line	application/octet-stream	
	P	PNG	Portable Network Graphics	image/png						
					Submit					
× Diskussionen * 🖏 🏷	99	13 13 Av	nneren 📃 💆 Dokussonen sind au	f http://www.stocal.net.5000/ richt verfügbar	60					
E Fertig				🙂 Internet						

Figure 18: Fifth step of profile creation – output specifications.

#### 3.2.6 Step 6 of 7: ancillary processing schemes

In the sixth step of profile creation, the ancillary processing parameters need to be specified. These concern the three fields:

- Ancillary data processing;
- Atmospheric correction processing;
- Mask data processing.

In the default demonstration mode, only one processing scheme is available for each field. Therefore, each processing scheme has to be checked. Advanced users under the operational mode have a choice e.g. between different atmospheric correction modules.



atei Baarbeiten Ansis	ht Eworiten I	lgran Z		4			
🕽 Zurück 🔹 🔘 🗉	🖹 🖻 🕼 ,	🔎 Suchen 👷 Favoriten 🜒 🖗 💀 🔜 🧫					
regse 🔊 http://www.sk	scal.net:8080/sisc	a)/CreateProfileStep\$Submit.do	💌 💽 Wechsein au 🛛 Liri	ks			
Siscal Services			New Profile 6/7				
» Submit Order » Manage Profiles	Ancillery Date	Processing					
<ul> <li>Manage Account</li> </ul>	Name	Description					
> Download > Logout	ANC	Andilary fields (wind, ozone, DEM,)					
	Atmospheric Correction						
	Name	Description					
	AMRR.	Atmospheric correction, marine refl., ULCO regional AC					
	Mask Data Pr	ocessing					
	Name	Description					
	MSK	Processing masks (water, land, cloud,)					
			Submit				
Oldesstation = 1 🐑 🕞	50 50 40 40 M	berningen. 🔄 🖾 Diductionen ded auf http://www.denil.com/0000/16th/wed/ichar					
Certin			A Internet	-			

Figure 19: Sixth step of profile creation – ancillary processing schemes.

#### 3.2.7 Step 7 of 7: profile summary and submission

In the seventh and last step of profile creation, the previously submitted information is listed. In case all entries are correct, the user can submit the profile which is then entered into the SISCAL database.



	iscal net 9090)	/siscal/CreateProfileStep0Submit.do			🛩 💽 Wechsel	ngu Lin
Sat	ellite-b	ased Information	System	on Coastal Areas	and Lakes	
scal Services					New Profile	7/7
Manage Profiles	Profile Sur	mmary				
Manage Account Download	Name Instrumer	AVHRR_SW_BALTIC AVHRR	Advano	ed Very High Resolution Radio	meter, NOAA	
bogoor.	ANC-Processor ANC		Atmosp	heric correction, marine refl.	) ULCO regional AC	
	MSK-Proo	essor MSK	Process	ing masks (water, land, doud	)	
	Projection	UTM	Univers	al Transverse Mercator		
	Resolution	n X 500.0	m			
	Resolution	hY 2000.0	m			
	Selected P	Region of Interest				
				59.0 °N		
		10.0 *W		54.0 °S	15.0 °E	
	Selected P	roducts				
	Product Name	Product Description	Algorithm Name	Algorithm Description		Unit
	SST	Sea surface temperature	GG2	Sea surface temperature, smoothed	COASTWATCH,	°C
	TAI	Top-of-atmosphere image	BG1	Top of atmosphere image	, non-linear stretching	none
	Selected D	Delivery Formats				
	Name	Description		Mime Type		
	BIL	Band Interleave by Line		application/octet-	stream	
	PNIS	Portable Network Graphics		image/png		
					Submit	1

Figure 20: Seventh step of profile creation: final submission for entering into the database.

#### 3.2.8 Removing profiles

Profiles can not be altered but only be removed. The dialogue for removing profiles is accessed through the "*Manage Profiles*" menu entry (see orange arrow on Figure 13).



resse 🍓 http://www.a	iscal n	et:8080/siscal/DeleteProfile	vdo					🔟 💽 W	echsein au Li	
Siscal Services	Delete Profil									
Submit Order Manage Profiles	Plea	Rease, select the profiles you wish to delete!								
Manage Account	List	ting of Profiles								
Logout		Name	Instrument Projectio		Region			Product (Algorithm)	Formats	
			Eastern Med AVHRR	AVHRR	UTM	30.0 ° E	36.0 ° N	36.0 ° E	<ul> <li>SST (GG2)</li> <li>TAI (BG1)</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>BIL</li> <li>PNG</li> </ul>
						30.0 ° N	0 ° N	<ul> <li>SST (GG4)</li> <li>Tat (BG4)</li> </ul>	BIL	
		Frankrist Mad MODAC	MODIC		20.045	36.0 ° N	25.005			
		Eastern Med MODJ5	MODIS	UIM	30.0 ° E	30.0 ° N	36.0 ° E	• TAI (BG1)	<ul> <li>FNG</li> </ul>	
						59.0 ° N		- CCT (002)	- D1	
		AVHRR_SW_BALTIC	AVHER	UTTM	10.0 * E	54.0 ° N	15.0 ° E	<ul> <li>TAI (8G1)</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>PNG</li> </ul>	

Figure 21: User interface for removing profiles. The interface is accessed through the "Manage Profiles" menu entry or directly through <u>http://www.siscal.net:8080/siscal/DeleteProfile.do</u>.



## 3.3 Product ordering

Products can only be ordered for previously established profiles. Product ordering is done through definition of "*requests*" encompassing a time span of up to one month. One request can therefore comprise one or more "*jobs*", where a job comprises all the products derived from one satellite image for the given profile. Users operating under the demonstration mode are granted a portfolio of typically 100 "jobs".

The product ordering procedure is accessed via **"Submit Order**" menu entry. Product ordering consists of just three steps, as shown in the following subsections:

- Request specification;
- Satellite overpass selection;
- Request submission.

#### 3.3.1 Step 1 of 3: request specifications

In the first step of product ordering, the customer selects one of the pre-defined profiles and indicates the time range for which the products are sought.

esse 🔊 http://www.s	iscal re	et 9090/siscal/Cn	eateOrderStep1.do				~	Wechseln au U				
Siscal Services			Sub	mit Order 1/3								
» Submit Order	_											
<ul> <li>Manage Profiles</li> <li>Manage Account</li> <li>Download</li> <li>Logout</li> </ul>	NOT	NOTE: Only 96 jobs left until your job limit exceeds. In case you need further information or have other comments on this, please do not hesitate to contact us.										
	Cho	ose Period of	Interest									
			Year	Month		Day	Hour	Minute				
	Star	rt Time	2005 🕶	June	**	5 🛩	0 🛩	0 🛩				
	Sto	p Time	2005 💌	2005 M June M			0 🛩	0 м				
	Tim	e Zone	UTC	~								
	Cho	ose a Profile										
		Name		Instrument	Region			Projection				
	_					36.0 ° N						
	0	Eastern Med	d MODIS	MODIS	30.0 * E	30.0.9 N	36.0 * E	UTM				
						59.0 % N						
	0	AVHRR_SW	WHRR SW BALTIC	AVHER	10.0 * E	53.0 ° N	15.0 * E					
						54.0 ° N						
						36.0 ° N						
	۲	Eastern Med	AWHRR	AWHER	30.0 ° E		36.0 ° E	UTM				
		ck here to crea	ate a new profile			30.0 ° N						
		CE Here to cres	ater a new prone.									

Figure 22: First step of product ordering – specifying profile and temporal range.



#### 3.3.2 Step 2 of 3: Overpass selection

In the second step, the SISCAL system determines the available satellite overpasses. This is done by:

- 1. determining the time of the satellite overpasses over the area of interest within the specified time span from orbital parameters, and then
- 2. comparing the resulting overpass times with
  - a. the actual availability within the local archive, and
  - b. the expected availability for external archives

The user is then offered a list of all available overpasses among which the best suited need to be chosen. Two considerations should be made when choosing among overpasses:

- Data available locally should be preferred, since no download from an external ftp server is required (by far the most time consuming step in the processing chain) and also since their existence is assured (see below)
- In case several overpasses are available for the same day, those with higher elevation should be preferred since low satellite elevation usually is associated with lower product quality.

atei Bearbeiten Ansi	chit Eavoriten Egtras 2							
🔁 Zurück 🔹 🕥 🖓	🖹 🗟 🏠 🔎 Suchen 🤺 🖡	aranten 🕐 Medien 🥑 🍰 🗟 🗖						
dregse 👔 http://www.s	iscal.net:9090/siscal/CreateOrderSte	p1Submit.do	M 🔂 Wechsein zu Unics					
Siscal Services			Submit Order 2/3					
<ul> <li>Submit Order</li> <li>Manage Profiles</li> <li>Manage Account</li> <li>Download</li> <li>Logout</li> </ul>	NOTE: Only 96 jobs left until your job limit exceeds. In case you need further information or have other comments on this, please do not hesitate to contact us.							
	Choose Satellite Overpasses	;						
	Time	Satellite Provider	Elevation Online/Offline					
	2005-06-23, 10:25:0	B.UTC AQUA NASA Goddard Space Flig	t Center (GSFC) 44 OFFLINE**					
	2005-06-23, 10:25:0	B.UTC AQUA Informus GmbH, local arc	thive 44 ONLINE*					
	2005-06-24, 11:08:0	B.UTC AQUA NASA Goddard Space Flig	ght Center (GSFC) 57 ONLINE*					
	2005-06-24, 11:08:0	B.UTC AQUA Informus GmbH, local arc	thive 57 ONLINE*					
	2005-06-23,08:52:0	B.UTC TERRA NASA Goddard Space Flig	ght Center (GSFC) 54 OFFLINE**					
	2005-06-23,08:52:0	B.UTC TERRA Informus GmbH, local and	thive 54 ONLINE*					
	*The data you have requested are available online either from our archive or directly from the satellite data providers.							
	**The data you have requested are only available offine. In case you are interested in products from dates marked as OFFLINE please note that the raw data must be ordered first. Therefore, processing might take a few days.							
			Submit					
Diskussionen =  🕲	9 9 1 1 Atomiere   2	Diskussionen sind auf http://www.siscal.net.8080/ nicht ve	vfügber					
Fertig			Internet					

Figure 23: Second step of product ordering – overpass selection.

Some more rules apply to ordering SISCAL data products:

SISCAL

- The time period for which data are selected may not exceed one month. Should you need data products for longer time spans, you need to establish several independent orders.
- Data products may also be ordered for future overpasses. The corresponding processes will be initiated once the required satellite raw data are (likely) available.

The external data providers connected to the SISCAL service are usually operating with a high degree of reliability. However, on rare occasions, data offered to the user during step 2 over the ordering procedure may finally not become available. The reasons for this might be related to e.g. failures of the satellite instrument, of the receiving stations or of the ftp access, etc.

#### 3.3.3 Step 3 of 3: Request submission

The last step of product ordering consists in finally submitting the request. After selecting the overpasses, a panel is shown summarizing the parameters of the request. By clicking the *"Submit"* button, all parameters of the request will be pre-processed and than entered into the SISCAL database.

SISCAL - Microsoft	Internet Expl	orer provi	ded by Tiscali			9.9	
Qatei Bearbeiten Ansk	tht Eavoriten E	giras 2				4	
🕃 Zurück 🔹 🔘 🗉	🖹 🖹 🕼 🎾	Suchen	👷 Favoriten  😵 M	eden 🙆 🍰 🕞			
dregse 🌒 http://www.si	scal.net:9090/sisc	al/CreateOrd	erStep2Submit.do			Mechaelh au Unics	
Siscal Services			Submit Order 3/3				
» Submit Order							
» Manage Profiles	Selected Profi	le					
» Manage Account	Name		Eastern Med MO	DIS			
* Download	Instrument		MODIS	Moderate Resolution	in Imaging Spec	trometer, NASA	
* Logout	Anc. Field Processing		ANC	Ancillary fields (wind, ozone, DEM,)		)	
	Atm. Corr. Processing		AMRR	Atmospheric corre	Atmospheric correction, marine refl., ULCO regional AC		
	Gen. Mask Processing		MSK.	Processing masks	Processing masks (water, land, cloud,)		
	Projection		UTM	Universal Transver	Universal Transverse Mercator		
	Resolution X		1000.0	m			
	Resolution Y		1000.0	m			
	Selected Regi	on					
			36.0	* N			
	30.0 ° E		36.0 *				
			30.0	* N			
	Selected Prod	lucts					
	Algorithm Name	Algorith	m Description		Product Name	Product Description	
	GG4	Sea sur smooth	face temperature, ed	MODIS split window,	SST	Sea surface temperature	
	BG1	Top of	Top-of-atmosphere Image				
	Selected Form	nats					
	Format Name		For	mat Description			
	BIL		Ban	d Interleave by Line			
	PNG		Por	table Network Graphics			

Figure 24: Third step of product ordering – request submission.



Successful submission of the request is confirmed on the website.

SISCAL - MICROSOF	t Internet Explor	er provided by Tiscali	X
Datei Dearbeiten Ansi	cht Eavoritien Eg	ran Z	27
G Zurück • 🕤 ·	R 🗟 🙆 🔎	Suchen 👷 Fasoriten 🜒 Meden 🕢 🔂 - 😓 🔤 🧫	
Adresse 🔊 http://www.s	iscal.net:9090/siscal	GreateOrderStep3Submit.do 🖉 💽 Wechseln zu	Unixs *
			^
SISCA	L		
	-		
Cal	allite have	d Tefermation Custom on Constal Areas and Lakes	
Sat	ellite-base	ed Information System on Coastal Areas and Lakes	
Siscal Services		Submit Orde	e
* Submit Order			_
» Manage Profiles	Your Request h	as been successfully submitted.	
> Manage Account	The Request ID	is 195.	
» Logout			_
	Job List		
	Job ID	Scheduled Date	
	531	2005-06-23, 10:31:49.UTC	
	532	2005-05-24, 11:14:19.UTC	
			*
X Diskussionen * 📆 💽	001114	mieren 💷 💆 Dalussionen sind auf http://www.siscal.net/5080/ nicht verfügbar	60
Fertig		🔮 Internet	

Figure 25: Product ordering - confirmation of request submission.



## 3.4 Product retrieval

The user is notified by e-mail upon complete termination of a request for data products, once all jobs of the request have been treated. Product retrieval is done in three steps as shown in the following subsections.

#### 3.4.1 Step 1 of 3: Request selection

Clicking on the "*Download*" menu entry will provide a listing of all requests finalised within the last three weeks. For each request, a number of parameters are shown, most importantly the actual status and the date of product removal from the SISCAL download area. Actually, SISCAL products are removed three weeks after completion of a request. In case data products have been removed, resubmission of the corresponding request is required.



Figure 26: First step of product retrieval – request selection.

#### 3.4.2 Step 2 of 3: Job selection

Clicking on a request ID (left column) lists the jobs corresponding to the request. Again, information is given for each request, most importantly its status. The following status parameters are possible for jobs and requests:

- > PENDING: job has been entered into the data base and is awaiting scheduling;
- > QUEUED: job has been entered into the queue of a SISCAL execution engine;
- RUNNING: job has been started;
- DONE: job / request has been successfully finished;



FAILED: Job is finished but processing has failed and no products could be derived.

In order to facilitate product retrieval, all jobs of a request may be downloaded at once by clicking on the appropriate link (see green arrow in Figure 27). All products of the request (which itself may consist of 1 to n jobs) will then be packed into one single zip-archive. Alternatively, a request may also be deleted (see orange arrow in Figure 27).

SISCAL - Microsof	ft internet Explore	r provided by Tiscali		
Date: Bearbeiten Ans	acht Eavoriten Egtra	88 Z		At 1
Garade • 🔘 ·	🖹 🖹 🏠 🔎	Suchen 🐈 Favoriten 🚷 Medien 🕢	🗟 • 🍓 🖂 🧫	
Adresse 👔 http://www.	siscal net 9090/siscal/0	iownicadStep1Submit.do	×	Wechselh zu Links **
				^
Sa	tellite-base	d Information System	on Coastal Areas and Lak	es
Siscal Services			Download	Products 2/3
» Submit Order			<b></b>	
» Manage Profit » Manage Account	<b>N</b>		» Re	quest ID: 195
* Download	$\mathbf{N}$			
> Logout	App Action			
	» Click here to d	lownload all jobs of this request	> Click here to delete this re-	quest
	Listing of Jobs			
	ID Satellite	Acquisition Time	Scheduled Time	Status
	531 AQUA	2005-06-23 10:25:49.UTC	2005-06-23, 10:31:49.UTC	FAILED
	532 AQUA	2005-06-24 11:07:49.UTC	2005-06-24, 11:14:19.UTC	DONE
				×
× Diskussionen * 📆 🖸	9명명발발 Abov	ieren   🖭 💋 Diskussionen sind auf http://www.s	scalvet (8080)' nicht verfügbar	<b>a</b>
Fertig			Internet	

Figure 27: Second step of product retrieval – job selection.

#### 3.4.3 Step 3 of 3 - product selection

Clicking on a job ID lists all products generated in the frame of the corresponding job. For each product, a quick-look is shown and information on the product quality is provided. This information is intended to assist the user whether a product is worth downloading or not.

Products can be retrieved individually by clicking on the links on the right side of the list. Alternatively, all products of a job can be retrieved as one single zip-archive.

Indications on product quality are provided by two means: First, the results of pixel classification are given in relative amounts of cloud covered, land surface and unclassifiable pixels. For the remaining pixels, which have been classified as clouds, estimates of the product quality are indicated. These quality estimates take the actual situation during the satellite overpass into account. Parameters considered for estimating product estimates comprise e.g.:

- Solar zenith angle;
- Observation zenith angle;



- Distance from the coast;
- > Atmospheric turbidity / atmospheric moisture;
- > Validity range of algorithm.

In case the data quality is insufficient, a job can be deleted. In contrast to that, single products of a job can't be deleted.

SISCAL - Microsoft	Internet Explorer provided by Tiscali	-	
Datei Bearbeiten Anse	cht Eawortten Egitas Z		R.
G Zurück • 🔘 ·	🖹 🔹 🏠 🔎 Suchen 👷 Favoriten 🜒 Medien 🥝 🔗 -	🕹 🖂 🔜	
Adresse 🔊 http://www.sl	scal.net 9090/riscal/DownloadStep2Submit.do	💌 💽 Wechsein au	nis *
Siscal Services		Download Products 3/3	-
<ul> <li>Manage Profiles</li> <li>Manage Account</li> <li>Download</li> </ul>		» Request ID: 195 » Job ID: 532	
* Logout	Apply Action		1
	» Click here to download all items of this job	> Click here to delete this job	
	TAI - Top of atmosphere image, non-linear stretching		
	Cover: 35,39% Land 01,70% Bright 00,23% Not Classifiable Product Quality: 62,68% Good 00,00% Moderate 00,00% Acceptable 00,00% Bad	BIL BD00506241107_00518848303.zip PNG MODAQUBG100532.PNG	
	SST - Sea surface temperature, MODIS split window, smoot	thed	
	Cover: 35,39% Land 01,70% Bright 00,23% Not Classifiable Product Quelity: 18,23% Good 02,25% Moderate 42,19% Acceptable 00,01% Bad	PNG MODAQUGG400532.PNG B1L GD00506241107_00518848333.ztp	
× Diekussionen * 😏 🕑	😳 🕃 🐩 🐄 Abennieren 🔝 🧭 Diskussionen sind auf http://www.siscal.net	:SDBO/ nicht verfügber	6
0		🔮 Internet	

Figure 28: Third step of product retrieval – product selection.